

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

CONSTITUTION AND RULES

Section 1 GENERAL RULES

Name, Objects and Constitution of the Club
Members and Membership
Entrance Fee and Subscriptions
Management
General Meetings
Accounts and Auditor
Club Trophies

Appendix A Child Protection Policy
Appendix B Club Trophies

Section 2 RACING RULES AND REGULATIONS

General Racing Regulations
Categories of Riders

Time Trials

Open Events
Club Events
Club Championships
Club Records
Best All-Rounder Competitions
Short Distance Competitions
Evening 10 Mile Competitions
Open Events Competition
Club Event Competition

Road Racing

Club Championships

Track Racing

Club Championships
Club Records

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

SECTION 1 GENERAL RULES

INDEX

NAME, OBJECTS AND CONSTITUTION OF THE CLUB

1. Name
2. Objects
3. Colours
4. Affiliations
5. Rules and Bye-Laws
6. Alterations of Rules
7. Liability of Members
8. Dissolution

MEMBERS AND MEMBERSHIP

9. Number of Members
10. Classes of Membership
11. First Claim Members
12. Second Claim Members
13. Associate Members
14. Life Members
15. Candidates for Membership
16. Election
17. Resignation
18. Expulsion
19. Refund of Subscription
20. Conduct of Members
21. Child Protection
22. Application of Rules and Regulations

ENTRANCE FEE AND SUBSCRIPTIONS

23. Entrance Fee
24. Annual Subscriptions
25. Arrears of Subscriptions
26. Members elected after 1st October

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

MANAGEMENT

27. The Committee
28. Officers
29. Vice-Presidents
30. Chairman
31. Committee Meetings
32. Special Committee Meetings
33. Notice of Meetings
34. Quorum
35. Powers of the Committee
36. Election of the Committee and Officers
37. Method of Election

GENERAL MEETINGS

38. General Meetings
39. Annual General Meetings
40. Extraordinary General Meetings
41. Form of Requisition
42. Notice of Meeting
43. Non-Receipt of Notice
44. Business of Annual General Meeting
45. Notice of Resolutions
46. Chairman of General Meetings
47. Quorum
48. How Resolutions are decided at Meetings
49. Ballot
50. Notices

ACCOUNTS AND AUDITOR

51. Keeping of Accounts
52. Bank Accounts
53. Financial Statement
54. Appointment of Auditor

CLUB TROPHIES

55. Inventory of Club Trophies
56. Allocation of Club Trophies
57. Agreement of Trophy Holders

APPENDIX A Child Protection Policy

APPENDIX B Inventory of Club Trophies

-oOo-

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

SECTION 1 GENERAL RULES

NAME, OBJECT AND CONSTITUTION OF THE CLUB

- | | |
|-----------------------------|--|
| Name | 1. The name of the Club is ‘BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB’ (hereinafter called the CLUB). |
| Objects | 2. The principal objects of the CLUB are: <ul style="list-style-type: none">(i) To encourage and promote all forms of competitive, recreational and social cycling.(ii) To promote cycling competitions either on its own behalf or in conjunction with other competent bodies and promoters for the benefit of CLUB Members and members of other similar organisations.(iii) To support, encourage and campaign for all forms of cycling which benefit the physical and mental wellbeing of the community |
| Colours | 3. The colours of the CLUB shall be Royal Blue and Gold. |
| Affiliations | 4. The CLUB shall be affiliated to Cycling Time Trials (CTT), Sussex Cyclists’ Association (SCA) and such bodies as the CLUB may from time to time determine in General Meeting. |
| Rules and Bye-Laws | 5. Every Member shall be bound by and submit to the Rules and Bye-Laws of the CLUB. |
| Alteration of Rules | 6. These Rules may be rescinded, altered, amended or added to only by a resolution passed by a majority consisting of two-thirds of the Members present and entitled to vote at a properly convened Annual General Meeting or Extraordinary General Meeting. |
| Liability of Members | 7. The liability of Members is limited. Membership of the CLUB involves no liability on any Member beyond the payment of the Subscription and Entrance Fee (if any) except as provided by the Rules. |
| Dissolution | 8. The CLUB can only be dissolved at a General Meeting of Members specially convened for that purpose. Upon the winding up of the CLUB for any reason whatsoever any monies and effects shall be disposed of as directed by such meeting. |

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

MEMBERS AND MEMBERSHIP

- Number of Members** 9. The number of Members is unlimited.
- Classes of Membership** 10. Membership of the CLUB shall be of classes as follows:
- FIRST CLAIM
- Senior - Aged 18 and over
 - Junior - Aged 16 to 17 inclusive
 - Juvenile - Aged 11 to 15 inclusive
- SECOND CLAIM
- Senior - Aged 18 and over
 - Junior - Aged 16 to 17 inclusive
 - Juvenile - Aged 11 to 15 inclusive
- ASSOCIATE
- LIFE
- First Claim Members** 11. First Claim Members shall be full Members of the CLUB and entitled to full rights and privileges.
- A rider may only be a First Claim Member of one cycling club
The first claim club shall be the longest continuous membership or, that club of which he has the next longest continuous membership, having resigned first claim membership of his previous first claim club.
- Second Claim Members** 12. Second Claim Members shall be full Members of the CLUB and entitled to full rights and privileges, save that they may not win a Club Trophy or hold a Club Record.
- Associate Members** 13. Associate Members shall enjoy full rights and privileges, save that they may not compete in racing events in the name of the CLUB or vote at General Meetings.
- Life Members** 14. Life Members shall be full Members of the CLUB and entitled to full rights and privileges. Life Membership is normally conferred in recognition of long continuous membership and service to the CLUB by the Members in General Meeting on a recommendation by the Committee. Life Members are not required to annual subscriptions but may wish to make an annual donation to the CLUB.

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

- Candidates for Membership** 15. A candidate for Membership must be proposed and seconded by two Members of the CLUB using the form for the time being authorised by the Committee.
- Election** 16. The election of the Members shall be vested in the Committee.
- Resignation** 17. Members intending to resign their Membership of the CLUB shall give 28 days notice in writing to the General Secretary and shall pay all arrears due at the date of such notice.
- Expulsion** 18. The Committee shall have the power to expel any Member who they may deem guilty of conduct detrimental to the interests of the CLUB, provided that no such expulsion shall take effect until the Member has been afforded a reasonable opportunity of making such representation as that Member may think is fit in person or in writing to the Committee. After expulsion, but on receipt of a requisition signed by not less than five Members, the Committee shall be required to hold an Extraordinary General Meeting within 21 days of the receipt of such requisition to reconsider the case. A majority of the Members present and entitled to vote shall be required to reinstate the Member. Thereafter, no further appeal shall lie.
- A Member expelled in accordance with this Rule shall have no claim or remedy against the CLUB or any Member of the Committee or any Official of the CLUB.
- Refund of Subscription** 19. A Member who resigns or is expelled from the CLUB shall not be entitled to a refund of the unexpired proportion of the subscription paid for the current year.
- Conduct of Members** 20. All Members are expected to conduct themselves in a manner that will bring honour and respect to the CLUB and to the Sport of Cycling in general.
- Child Protection** 21. The CLUB will set down a Child Protection Policy (See Appendix A) which complies with the Child Protection in Cycling Code. Every Member shall be bound by this Policy as a Rule and Bye-Law of the Club.
- Application of Rules and Regulations** 22. The Rules and Regulations of the CLUB are to be interpreted to apply equally to both sexes, save where there are specific competitions for males and females.

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

ENTRANCE FEE AND SUBSCRIPTIONS

- | | | |
|---|-----|---|
| Entrance Fee | 23. | An Entrance Fee of such amount as the Committee may from time to time determine, if any, shall be paid by a candidate for Membership on application. |
| Annual Subscriptions | 24. | Annual subscriptions for the various Classes of Membership shall be fixed from time to time by the Members at the Annual General Meeting and shall be payable on 1 st January in every year. Members who pay their annual subscriptions for the following year before the Annual General Meeting shall be entitled to renew at the current rate if lower. |
| Arrears of Subscriptions | 25. | Members who have not paid their subscriptions by 1 st February in any year shall be deemed to be to be in arrears and shall not be entitled to the full rights and privileges of Members and shall not be entitled to compete in any racing event. A Member whose subscription remains unpaid after 31 st March shall cease to be a Member, but may be reinstated at the discretion of the Committee on payment of all arrears. |
| Members elected after 1st October | 26. | Members elected after 1 st October in any year shall have the privilege of membership up to 31 st December of the following year. |

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

MANAGEMENT

The Committee 27. The CLUB shall be managed by a Committee. The number of Committee Members shall never be less than five nor more than fifteen.

Officers 28. Members of the Committee shall be elected to serve as the following Officers:

President
Chairman
Deputy Chairman
General Secretary
Treasurer
Time Trials Secretary
Social Secretary
Club Runs Leader
Assistant Club Runs Leader
Cyclists' Rights & Planning Officer

Members of the Committee may be elected to hold more than one office.

The number and titles of Officers may be varied from time to time as determined by the Members in General Meeting, but will form the basis of the Committee. Additional members may be elected to increase the Committee membership to fifteen.

Vice-Presidents 29 Vice- Presidents may be elected by the Members in General Meeting. Vice- Presidency is normally conferred in recognition of past services to the CLUB.

Chairman 30. The Chairman or, in his absence, the Deputy Chairman or, in his absence, the senior elected Member of the Committee present shall act as Chairman at Committee Meetings and General Meetings and shall have a casting vote.

Committee Meetings 31. Committee Meetings shall normally be held Bi-Monthly to conduct the business of the CLUB.

Special Committee Meetings 32. The Committee may convene a Special Meeting to conduct urgent business.

Notice of Meetings 33. At least twenty four hours notice of every Committee Meeting shall be given to each Member of the Committee.

Quorum 34. Five Members of the Committee personally present shall form a quorum.

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

Powers of the Committee

35. The Committee shall have the power to:
- (a) fill any vacancy that may occur in their number. Any Member so appointed shall hold office until the next Annual General Meeting when he shall be eligible for election.
 - (b) co-opt Members to the Committee with power to vote
 - (c) elect and expel Members of the CLUB
 - (d) manage the affairs of the CLUB and make necessary Bye Laws and additions and amendments thereto and decide any question as to the interpretation of the Rules and deal with any matter not provided therein.
 - (e) Appoint from among their number Sub-Committees (with power to co-opt other Members) and may depute or refer to them such powers and duties that the Committee may determine. The Chairman, General Secretary, and Treasurer shall be ex-officio on all sub-committees

Election of the Committee and Officers

36. The Chairman and all the Members of the Committee shall be elected annually at the Annual General Meeting.

The President and Vice-Presidents shall retire at each Annual General Meeting and be eligible for re-election.

Method of Election

37. The election of Officers and Committee Members shall take place at the Annual General Meeting in the following manner:
- (a) Each candidate for election to the Committee must be proposed and seconded by two Members of the CLUB. The candidate must intimate his willingness to serve either in writing to the General Secretary or verbally at the Annual General Meeting.
 - (b) In the event of Candidates so nominated exceeding the number of vacancies, they shall be elected by ballot.
 - (c) Vice-Presidents may be elected by show of hands. Nominations for additional Vice-Presidents should either submitted to the General Secretary in writing before the Annual General Meeting or made verbally at the Annual General Meeting.

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

GENERAL MEETINGS

- | | | |
|--|-----|---|
| General Meetings | 38. | All General Meetings other than Annual General Meeting shall be called Extraordinary General Meetings. |
| Annual General Meetings | 39. | The CLUB shall hold an Annual General Meeting during the month of November in each year. |
| Extraordinary General Meetings | 40. | The Committee may, whenever it thinks fit and upon receipt of a requisition made in writing signed by not less than ten members, convene an Extraordinary General Meeting within twenty one days of receipt by the General Secretary of the aforesaid requisition. |
| Form of Requisition | 41. | Any such requisition shall specify the business to be brought before such a meeting. The meeting must be convened for the purposes specified in the requisition and shall be convened for those purposes only. |
| Notice of Meeting | 42. | At least fourteen days clear notice of any Annual General Meeting or Extraordinary General Meeting shall be given to the Members of the CLUB. |
| Non-Receipt of Notice | 43. | The non-receipt of any such notice by any Members shall not invalidate any Resolution passed at any such meeting. |
| Business of Annual General Meetings | 44. | The business of an Annual General Meeting shall be to receive and consider The Accounts and the Reports of the Committee and Auditors, to elect a President, Vice-Presidents, Officers and Members of the Committee for the ensuing year: to appoint the Auditor and to deal with any other matter specified on the Agenda. |
| Notice of Resolutions | 45. | Notice of Resolutions (other than those to elect the Officers and the Committee) to be proposed at the Meeting must be received by the General Secretary in writing at least seven days prior thereto. |
| Chairman of General Meetings | 46. | The Chairman of the Committee or, in his absence, the Deputy Chairman or, if neither is present, a Member nominated by the Committee, shall take the Chair at every General Meeting. |

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

- Quorum** 47. Ten Members personally present shall form a quorum. If within half an hour of the time appointed for the Meeting a quorum is not present, the Meeting shall stand adjourned to the same day next week at the same time and place. If, at such adjourned Meeting, a quorum is not present, those Members who are present shall be deemed to be a quorum and may transact all business which could properly have been transacted at the Meeting from which such adjournment took place.
- How Resolutions are decided at Meetings** 48. Every Resolution submitted to a Meeting other than those set out in Rule 37(b) shall be decided by a show of hands.
- Ballot** 49. The Chairman of the Meeting shall decide the manner by which a ballot shall be taken and its result shall be determined to be the Resolution of the Meeting at which such ballot was taken.
- Notices** 50. A Notice may be served by the CLUB either personally; or by email; or by sending it through the post addressed to the last known address of the Member which has been given to the General Secretary:
- Any Notice sent by post shall be deemed to have been served on the day following that on following that on which the envelope containing the Notice was posted.

ACCOUNTS AND AUDITOR

- Keeping of Accounts** 51. The Committee shall cause true accounts to be kept of all sums of money received and expended by the CLUB.
- Bank Accounts** 52. The CLUB shall have two Bank Accounts; a Deposit Account and a Current Account. All cheques must be signed by two members of the Committee.
- Financial Statement** 53. The Committee shall submit to the Annual General Meeting in each year a Financial Statement of Receipts and Payments made up to the preceding thirty first day of October together with the Report of the Auditor thereon.
- Appointment of Auditor** 54. The CLUB shall appoint an Auditor at each Annual General Meeting to hold office until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

CLUB TROPHIES

- Inventory of Club Trophies** 55. The Committee shall cause an inventory to be maintained of all Club Trophies. (See Appendix B).
- Allocation of Club Trophies** 56. The allocation of Trophies donated to the CLUB by Members and Non-Members shall be at the discretion of the Committee.
- Agreement of Trophy Holders** 57. Winners of Club Trophies are allowed to hold trophies for one year on condition that they agree to keep them in good condition whilst in their custody and to return them within 14 days at the request of the Committee.

-oOo-

POLICY AND PROCEDURES FOR THE PROTECTION OF CHILDREN AND VULNERABLE ADULTS

1. POLICY

1.1 The CLUB has an obligation to provide a duty of care to protect all children (and vulnerable adults) and to safeguard their welfare, irrespective of age, gender, racial origin, religious belief, sexual identity and any disability.

1.2 The CLUB will take all reasonable practical steps to protect children from harm and discrimination and will respond quickly to all reported suspicions and allegations.

1.3 The CLUB recognises that the key to good practice is having an awareness of the principles required to promote a safe environment. The CLUB will adopt the Guidance Notes on good practice, poor practice and abuse as set down in Section 2 of the Document on Child Protection in Cycling issued by British Cycling and endorsed by Cycling Time Trials and other leading national cycling organisations.

1.4 The Committee will be responsible for ensuring suitable procedures exist to meet this policy statement.

2. PROCEDURES

2.1 It is the responsibility of every member of the CLUB to report any concern about the welfare of any child *separately* to two members of the Committee who will normally be the General Secretary and the Chairman.

2.2 It is not the responsibility of the Committee to determine whether or not abuse has taken place. This is the domain of child protection professionals, the social services and the police force.

2.3 The CLUB is a member of Cycling Time Trials (CTT). It is the responsibility of the Committee to report any concerns about the welfare of a child to the National Secretary of Cycling Time Trials (CTT) who will act as a designated National Child Protection Officer (NCPO). The NCPO will be responsible for referring the allegation to the Social Services Department in accordance with the procedures laid down in the Document on Child Protection in Cycling.

2.4 Cycling Time Trials and other leading national cycling organisations who are parties to the Document on Child Protection in Cycling have given a commitment that all suspicions will be taken seriously and responded to swiftly and appropriately through the laid down suspension, disciplinary and appeals procedures.

2.5 The Committee shall be responsible for making a detailed report at the time of any disclosure of concern. This information should be written in factual format and avoid any opinion or hearsay. This report should be sent to the National Secretary of Cycling Time Trials, as the NCPO.

2.6 Where time is of the essence and the NCPO or the nominated deputy is unavailable, the Club Committee may instruct the Chairman or the General Secretary to contact the NSPCC Helpline (0808 800 5000), the duty officer at West Sussex County Council Social and Caring Services or Child Protection Personnel within Sussex Police.

2.7 The Committee shall have the power to suspend members of the Club accused of alleged abuse whilst the matter is being investigated by the appropriate authority.

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

APPENDIX B

CLUB TROPHIES

TIME TRIALS - CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP TROPHIES

THOMPSON TROPHY Presented by Councillor Thompson	Senior BAR Champion
FROGBROOK CUP Presented by Mrs Frogbrook	Runner-up in Senior BAR Championship
LADIES BAR TROPHY Presented by the Club	Ladies BAR Champion
WILMOTT PLAQUE Presented by Wilmott's Garage	Junior BAR Champion
VETERANS BAR TROPHY Presented by Jim Gilbert	Veterans BAR Champion
SHORT DISTANCE PLAQUES Presented by the Club	Senior Champion Veterans Champion
EVENING 10 PLAQUES Presented by the Club	Senior Champion Ladies Champion Junior Champion Juvenile Champion
THE PENNY FARTHING TROPHY Presented by Roy Fairchild	Veterans Evening 10 Champion
CHARLIE JANMAN MEMORIAL TROPHY Presented by the Club	Open Events Champion
JIM GILBERT MEMORIAL TROPHY Presented by the Club	Club Events Champion

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

TIME TRIALS - TROPHIES FOR FASTEST RIDES OF THE YEAR

ROGER LAIDLAW MEMORIAL TROPHY Presented by the Club	Fastest 10 Miles
The "25" PLAQUE Presented by L F Bull	Fastest 25 Miles
W H WOOD TROPHY Presented by W H Wood	Fastest 30 Miles
THE BUILDER'S TROPHY Presented by J E Betts	Fastest 50 Miles
THE PRESIDENT'S TROPHY Presented by A E V Pinnock	Fastest 100 Miles
THE BSA TROPHY Presented by BSA	Best 12 Hour Ride
L F BULL TROPHY Presented by L F Bull	Fastest 10 Miles by a Lady
THE LADIES "25" TROPHY Presented by the Club	Fastest 25 Miles by a Lady
JUNIOR 10 TROPHY Presented by Roy Fairchild	Fastest 10 Miles by a Junior
DENNIS DOUGHTY MEMORIAL TROPHY Presented by the Club	Fastest 25 Miles by a Junior
THE VETERAN'S 10 TROPHY Presented by David & Carol Palmer	Fastest Veteran on Age Standard at 10 Miles.
THE VETERANS 25 TROPHY Presented by Roy Fairchild	Fastest Veteran on Age Standard at 25 Miles.
THE VETERAN'S 50 TROPHY Presented by David & Carol Palmer	Fastest Veteran on Age Standard at 50 Miles
THE VETERANS 100 TROPHY Presented by Roy Fairchild	Fastest Veteran on Age Standard at 100 Miles.
THE NOVICE TROPHY Presented by Nurse Evans	Fastest 25 Miles by a Novice

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

TIME TRIALS - TROPHIES FOR OPEN EVENTS

THE JIM GILBERT TANKARD Presented by the Club	Slowest Rider in the Open "10"
TOM RYAN TROPHY Presented by Tom Ryan	Fastest Club Rider in the Open "10"
BRCC TROPHY Presented by the Club	Winner of the Open "25"
THE LADIES ROSE BOWL Presented by L F Bull	Fastest Lady Rider in the Open "25"
THE MEMORIAL TROPHY Presented by the Club	Winning Team in the Open "25"
THE PERRY SHIELD Presented by Mr & Mrs Perry	Fastest Club Rider in the Open "25"
THE JANMAN SALVER Presented by Les & Margaret Janman	Third Fastest Club Rider in the Open "50"
THE BLACKSMITH TROPHY Presented by J Stevens	Fastest Club Rider in the Goodwood Classic Hilly "28"

TIME TRIALS - TROPHIES FOR CLUB EVENTS

THE CLAUD BUTLER TROPHY Presented by J H T Gilbert	Winner of the First "25" of the Year
THE BUILDERS TROPHY Presented by J E Betts	Winner of the Last "25" of the Year
THE HENNESSEY TROPHY Presented by Sheila Fleming	Fastest Club Rider in the Hilly Evening "10"

TIME TRIALS - OTHER TROPHIES

BILL MILLS TROPHY Re-presented by the Club	Awarded to Fastest Club Rider under the hour for "25" who had not previously beaten 60 minutes at the start of the year.
THE CLIMBER'S BRONZE Presented by T. Morgan	Third fastest Club Rider on aggregate in Hilly "10" & "28"

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

ROAD RACING - CHAMPIONSHIP TROPHIES

SENIOR ROAD RACE TROPHY
Presented by the Club

Senior Road Race Champion

LADIES ROAD RACE PLAQUE
Presented by the Club

Ladies Road Race Champion

JUNIOR ROAD RACE TROPHY
Presented by the Club

Junior Road Race Champion

TRACK RACING - CHAMPIONSHIP TROPHIES

THE SADLER TROPHY
Presented by the Club

Track Champion

OTHER TROPHIES

CLUBMAN'S TROPHY
Presented by L E Walwin

Awarded to the Best Clubman
of the Year

W H WOOD SPEIAL AWARD
Presented by W H Wood

Awarded for Special Merit

o-O-o

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

SECTION 2 - RACING RULES AND REGULATIONS

INDEX

GENERAL RACING REGULATIONS

1. Rules of Cycle Racing
2. Classes of Racing
3. Club Championships
4. Club Records
5. Alterations to Racing Rules
6. Powers of the Committee

CATEGORIES OF RIDERS

7. Senior
8. Veteran
9. Espoir
10. Junior
11. Juvenile
12. Minimum Age
13. Parental Consent
14. Novice

TIME TRIALS

OPEN EVENTS - TIME TRIALS

15. Open Events Programme
16. Changes in Open Events Programme
17. Entry Fees
18. Scale of Awards

CLUB EVENTS - TIME TRIALS

19. Club Events Programme
20. Changes in Club Events Programme
21. Entry Fees
22. Eligibility to ride in Club Events
23. Entry Form
24. Scale of Awards

CLUB CHAMPIONSHIPS - TIME TRIALS

25. Club Champions
26. Classes
27. Qualifying Events
28. Closing Date

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

CLUB RECORDS - TIME TRIALS

29. Awards
30. Classes
31. Veterans
32. Claims
33. Eligibility

BEST ALL-ROUNDER COMPETITIONS - TIME TRIALS

34. The Competitions
35. Classes
36. Qualifying Distances
37. Men's BAR
38. Women's BAR
39. Junior BAR
40. Juvenile BAR
41. Veteran's BAR
42. Qualifying Events
43. Closing Date

SHORT DISTANCE COMPETITIONS - TIME TRIALS

44. The Competitions
45. Classes
46. Qualifying Distances
47. Senior Competition
48. Veteran's Competition
49. Qualifying Events
50. Closing Date

EVENING 10 MILE COMPETITIONS - TIME TRIALS

51. The Competitions
52. Classes
53. Qualifying Rides
54. Qualifying Events
55. Winner in the case of a Tie on Points

OPEN EVENTS COMPETITION - TIME TRIALS

56. The Competition
57. Qualifying Rides
58. Qualifying Events
59. Number of Events
60. Closing Date

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

CLUB EVENTS COMPETITION - TIME TRIALS

61. The Competition
62. Qualifying Rides
63. Qualifying Events
64. Number of Events
65. Closing Date

ROAD RACING

CLUB CHAMPIONSHIPS - ROAD RACING

66. The Competitions
67. Qualifying Rides
68. Eligible Events
69. Closing Date

TRACK RACING

CLUB CHAMPIONSHIPS - TRACK RACING

70. The Competitions
71. Qualifying Rides
72. Eligible Events
73. Closing Date

CLUB RECORDS - TRACK RACING

74. Awards
75. Classes
76. Claims
77. Eligibility

-oOo-

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

SECTION 2 - RACING RULES AND REGULATIONS

GENERAL RACING REGULATIONS

- Rules of Cycle Racing** 1. The Racing Rules adopted by the CLUB shall comply with the Regulations of Cycle Racing laid down from time to time by the Governing Bodies for the Sport.
- Classes of Racing** 2. Racing shall be classified as follows;
- Time Trials
 - Road Racing
 - Track Racing
- Cycling Time Trials (CTT) is the Governing Body for Time Trials.
- British Cycling (BC) is the Governing Body for Road Racing and Track Racing.
- Club Championships** 3. Championships shall be held annually for each class of racing which shall be open to First Claim Members only.
- Club Records** 4. Club Records shall be awarded for the fastest times recorded by First Claim Members in the following classes of racing
- Time Trials
 - Track Racing
- Alterations to Racing Rules** 5. The Racing Rules for Club Championships and Club Records may be rescinded, altered, amended or added to only by a Resolution passed by a simple majority of the Members present and entitled to vote at a properly Annual General Meeting or an Extraordinary General Meeting.
- Powers of the Committee** 6. The Committee shall have the power to decide any questions as to the interpretation of the Racing Rules and deal with any matter not definitely provided for therein.

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

CATEGORIES OF RIDERS

- Senior** 7. A Senior is a person who was 18 years of age or over on the 1st January preceding the day of the event.
- Veteran** 8. A Veteran is a person who is 40 years of age or over on the day of the event.
- Espoir** 9. An Espoir is a person from 1st January of the year following his 18th birthday and until 31st December of the year in which his 22nd birthday occurs.
- Junior** 10. A Junior is a person who was under 18 years of age on the 1st January in the current year and over 16 years of age on the day of the event.
- Juvenile** 11. A Juveniles is a person who is under 16 years of age and over 12 years of age on the date of the event.
- Minimum Age** 12. No person under the age of 12 years may compete in any racing event held on the highway under CTT or British Cycling regulations.
- Parental Consent** 13. A Junior or Juvenile may only compete with the written consent of his parent or guardian.
- Novice** 14. A Novice is a first year rider who has never won an award in a competitive cycling event.

TIME TRIALS

OPEN EVENTS - TIME TRIALS

- Open Events Programme** 15. A programme of Time Trial Open Events to be promoted by the Club in the ensuing year shall be drawn up by the Committee for inclusion in the CTT South DC Time Trial Programme. The decision of the CTT South DC on the Open Events Programme shall be final.
- Changes in the Open Events Programme** 16. Proposals for changes or additions to the Open Events Programme must be received by the General Secretary in writing before 31 July in the preceding year giving details of the type of event, distance and proposed date.
- Entry Fees** 17. The amount of the Entry Fee to be paid for each event shall be decided by the Committee.
- Scale of Awards** 18. The minimum scale of Awards for Open Events shall be set by the Committee.

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

CLUB EVENTS - TIME TRIALS

- Club Events Programme** 19. A programme of Club Events shall be drawn up by the Committee and agreed not later than the month of October in respect of events to be promoted in the following year. The decision of CTT South DC on the Club Events Programme shall be final.
- Changes in the Club Events Programme** 20. Proposals for changes or additions to the Club Events Programme must be received by the General Secretary in writing before 30 September giving details of the type of event, distance and proposed date.
- Entry Fees** 21. An Entry Fee shall be paid by each entrant in a Club Event. The amount of the entry fee for each event shall be decided by the Committee.
- Eligibility to ride in Club Events** 22. Club Events shall be open to all First Claim and Second Claim Members.

Members of other clubs affiliated to the CTT are welcome to ride in Club Events but priority will be given to First and Second Claim Members of Bognor Regis CC.
- Entry Form** 23. Entry Forms are not required for Club Events but every rider is required to sign the Official Signing-On Sheet in the form prescribed by Cycling Time Trials (CTT). All riders under the age of 18 years must produce written consent of his/her parent or guardian.
- Scale of Awards** 24. The scale of awards for Club Events shall be as follows
- 3 to 5 Riders - 1st only
 - 6 to 8 Riders - 1st and 2nd
 - Over 8 Riders - 1st, 2nd, and 3rd.
- Separate awards will be made for First and Second Claim Members according to the above scale, but related to the number of riders in each class of membership.
- This scale of awards shall be ordinarily be restricted to Club Events held on Sunday Mornings during the months from March to October inclusive. This Rule does not apply to Club Evening 10 Mile Events held on Thursday evenings during the months from April to August inclusive.

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

CLUB CHAMPIONSHIPS - TIME TRIALS

Club Champions 25. The CLUB shall award medals for the fastest rides by First Claim Members during the year, who will be designated as Club Champions, at:

- 10 Miles
- 25 Miles
- 30 Miles
- 50 Miles
- 100 Miles
- 12 Hours

Club Trophies may also be allocated to be presented annually to Club Champions.

Classes 26. There shall be separate awards for Seniors, Women, Juniors, Juveniles and Veterans. In the case of Veterans it will be decided on the Plus against Standard Times or Distance (VTTA System). The awards for Seniors shall be open to Men, Women, Juniors, Juveniles and Veterans.

Qualifying Events 27. The times may be recorded in Open Events, (including National Championships), Association Events, Inter Club Events and Club Events.

Closing Date 28. No time recorded after 21st October in each year shall be eligible.

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

CLUB RECORDS - TIME TRIALS

- Awards** 29. The Club shall award medals at 10 miles, 15 miles, 25 miles, 30 miles, 50 miles, 100 miles, 12 hours and 24 hours to members riding solo or tandem bicycles or tricycles who break or establish a Club Record in any event at these distances or time.
- Classes** 30. There shall be separate Club Records for Seniors, Women, and, in the case of tandem events, mixed pairs, Juniors, Juveniles and Veterans. Club Records for Senior may be held by Men Woman, Juniors, Juveniles and Veterans and Club Records for Juniors may be held by Juveniles.
- Veterans** 31. Club Records for Veterans will be awarded according to age, but no record will be recognised if a better time or distance has already been made by a record holder of a greater age. No claim for a Veteran Record will be considered unless the rider has beaten his Standard Time or Distance (VTTA system).
- Claims** 32. All claims for records shall be made to the Time Trial Secretary not later than 31st October of the current year.
- Eligibility** 33. Club Records are restricted to First Claim Members only.

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

BEST ALL-ROUNDER COMPETITIONS - TIME TRIALS

- The Competitions** 34. Competitions for Club Championships shall be held annually called the Best All-Rounder Competitions (BAR)
- Classes** 35. There shall be separate Competitions for Men, Women, Juniors, Juveniles and Veterans. In the case of Veterans it will be decided on Standard Times. (VTTA System).
- Qualifying Distances** 36. The Competitions shall be decided on the fastest average speed during the season over the following distances, except that in the case of Veterans, it will be awarded on the highest aggregate "PLUS" over Standard times (VTTA System).
- | | |
|----------|-----------------------|
| Men | 25, 50 and 100 miles |
| Women | 10 and 25 miles. |
| Juniors | 10, 25 and 50 miles. |
| Juvenile | 10 and 25 miles |
| Veterans | 25, 50 and 100 miles. |
- This rule shall not prevent a Veteran from winning the Senior Competition on actual times.
- Mens' BAR** 37. The Men's BAR Competition shall be open to all first claim male members, including Veterans, Juniors and Juveniles.
- Women's BAR** 38. The Women's BAR Competition shall be open to all first claim female members, including Veterans, Juniors and Juveniles.
- Junior BAR** 39. The Junior BAR Competition shall be open to all first claim male and female Junior and Juvenile members.
- Juvenile BAR** 40. The Juvenile BAR Competition shall be open to all first claim male and female Juvenile members.
- Veteran's BAR** 41. The Veteran's BAR Competition shall be open to all first claim male and female members who are aged 40 years and over and shall be awarded to the club member with the highest aggregate "PLUS" over Standard Times (VTTA System)
- Qualifying Events** 42. The fastest times may be recorded in Open Events, Association Events, or Inter-Club and Club Events, including Private Time Trials in a Club Event promoted by another club affiliated to Cycling Time Trials (CTT).
- Closing Date** 43. No time recorded after 21st October in each year shall be eligible for the BAR Competitions.

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

SHORT DISTANCE COMPETITIONS - TIME TRIALS

- The Competitions** 44. Short Distance Best All-Rounder Competitions shall be held annually called the Short Distance Competitions.
- Classes** 45. There shall be two separate competitions, one for Seniors covering both Men and Women and one for Veterans. In the case of Veterans it will be decided on Standard Times. (VTTA System).
- Qualifying Distances** 46. The Competitions shall be decided on the fastest average speed during the season over the following distances, except in the case of Veterans, it will be awarded on the highest aggregate "PLUS" over Standard Times (VTTA System).
- Two 10 mile time trials
Two 25 mile time trials
One 50 mile time trial.
- This rule shall not prevent a Veteran, male or female, from winning the Senior Competition on actual times.
- Senior Competition** 47. The Senior Competition, shall be open to all first claim male and female members, including Veterans, Juniors and Juveniles.
- Veterans Competition** 48. The Veteran's Competition shall open to all first claim male and female members who are aged 40 years and over and shall be awarded to the club member with the highest aggregate "PLUS" over Standard Times (VTTA System).
- Qualifying Events** 49. The fastest times may be recorded in Open Events, Association Events or Inter-Club and Club Events, including Private Time Trials in a Club Event promoted by another club affiliated to Cycling Time Trials (CTT).
- Closing Date** 50. No time recorded after 21st October in each year shall be Eligible for the Short Distance Competitions.

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

EVENING 10 MILE COMPETITIONS - TIME TRIALS

The Competitions 51. Competitions shall be held annually and shall be called the “Evening 10 Championships”.

Classes 52. There shall be separate Competitions for Men, Women, Juniors, Juveniles and Veterans.

For the purpose of these competitions only, the category of Juvenile riders shall be determined by his or her age on 1st January in the current year.

Qualifying Rides 53. The Competitions shall be decided on the on the maximum point awarded from any 10 events in the Club Evening 10 Mile Events during the season. Points shall be awarded in each Category as follows:-

Position	Points
Fastest	5
Second	4
Third	3
Fourth	2
Finishing	1

In the Veteran Category, the points shall be awarded on the highest PLUS over Standard Time (VTTA System) based on his age on the day of the event.

This rule shall not prevent a Veteran for winning the Senior Competitions for Men or Women on actual times.

Qualifying Events 54. The Competition shall be restricted to the Club Evening 10 Mile Events held on Thursday evenings during the months from April to August inclusive.

Winner in the case of a Tie on Points 55. In the event of more than one Member in a category obtaining the same number of points, the Winner of the Competition shall be awarded on the basis of the highest average speed from the 10 events chosen, or in the case of Veterans, the highest aggregate “PLUS from the 10 events chosen.

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

OPEN EVENTS COMPETITION - TIME TRIALS

- The Competition** 56. A Competition shall be held annually and shall be called the “Open Events Competition”.
- Qualifying Rides** 57. The Competition shall be open to First Claim Members and will be decided on the basis of the most points gained in Open Events. Points will be awarded for the placing in the events from 120 points for 1st Place down to 1 points for 120th place. In the case of specific events for Veterans, the placing shall be awarded on the PLUS against Age Standard (VTTA System).
- Qualifying Events** 58. Open Events, Semi-Open Events and Association Events. A Qualifying Event must be published in the Cycling Time Trials Handbook.
- Number of Events** 59. Any number of events may be ridden.
- Closing Date** 60. No ride after 21st October in each year shall be eligible.

CLUB EVENTS COMPETITION - TIME TRIALS

- The Competition** 61. A Competition shall be held annually and shall be called the “Club Events Competition”.
- Qualifying Rides** 62. The Competition shall be open to First Claim Members and will be decided on the basis of the most points gained in Sunday Morning Club Events. Points will be awarded on the following basis:-
- | Position | Points |
|-----------|--------|
| Fastest | 5 |
| Second | 4 |
| Third | 3 |
| Fourth | 2 |
| Finishing | 1 |
- Placing for this competition is defined as the placing in relation to other Bognor Regis CC First Claim Members.
- Qualifying Events** 63. Club Events. Inter-Club Events and Combined Club Events published in the Club Handbook.
- Number of Events** 64. Any number of events may be ridden.
- Closing Date** 65. No ride after 21st October in each year shall be eligible.

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

ROAD RACING

CLUB CHAMPIONSHIPS - ROAD RACING

The Competitions 66. Competitions for Club Championships shall be held annually and shall be called the Road Race Championships. These competitions shall comprise one for Seniors, one for Ladies, one for Juniors and one for Juveniles. The Junior and Juvenile Championship shall be open to Male and Female Members.

Qualifying Rides 67. The Competitions shall be open to First Claim Members and will be decided on a points basis. Points will be awarded as follows:-

	Elite & First Category Events	Second Category Events	Third, Fourth, Women, Junior & Juvenile Category Events
Win	20	15	12
Second	16	12	10
Third	12	9	8
Fourth	8	6	6
Fifth	6	4	4
Sixth	3	2	2
Finish	1	1	1

Riders must finish at least 3 qualifying rides to be eligible for an award.

Qualifying Events 68. A qualifying event is an event sanctioned by British Cycling.

Closing Date 69. No ride after 21st October in each year shall be eligible.

BOGNOR REGIS CYCLING CLUB

TRACK RACING

CLUB CHAMPIONSHIPS - TRACK RACING

The Competitions 70. Competitions for Club Championships shall be held annually and shall be called the Track Championships. These competitions shall comprise one for Seniors, one for Ladies; one for Juniors and one for Juveniles. The Junior and Juvenile Competitions shall be open to Male and Female Members.

Qualifying Rides 71. The Competitions shall be open to all First Claim Members and will be decided on a points basis. Points will be awarded as follows:-

	Points
Win	6
2 nd Place	4
3 rd Place	3
Heat Win	1

Riders must obtain a minimum of 3 points from 3 qualifying rides to be eligible for an award.

Qualifying Events 72. Qualifying Events shall be all Track Meetings sanctioned by British Cycling (BC).

Closing Date 73. No ride after 21st October in each year shall be eligible.

CLUB RECORDS - TRACK RACING

Awards 74. Medals will be awarded to riders of single or tandem bicycles breaking or establishing a Club Record at a distance recognised by British Cycling (BC).

Classes 75. There shall be separate Club Records for Seniors; Ladies; Juniors; Juveniles and Veterans. The Records for Seniors and Ladies may be held by Juniors; Juveniles and Veterans and the Junior Records may be held by Juveniles.

Claims 76. All claims for records shall be made no later than 31st October of the current year.

Eligibility 77. Club Records are restricted to First Claim Members only.

o-O-o